








 

IV. 

Targeted for 1:30 P.M.  The next Board of Directors regular meeting is scheduled for Thursday, 
April 19, 2012 at 12:00 P.M. in OTO Offices at 205 Park Central East, Suite 212. 

Adjournment 
 

 
 
Attachments 
 
Pc: Jim Anderson, President, Springfield Area Chamber of Commerce 
 Ken McClure, Missouri State University 
 Stacy Burks, Senator Blunt’s Office 
 Dan Wadlington, Senator Blunt’s Office 
 David Rauch, Senator McCaskill’s Office 

Matt Baker, Congressman Long’s Office 
 Area News Media 
 
Si usted necesita la ayuda de un traductor del idioma español, por favor comuníquese con la Debbie Parks al teléfono 
(417) 865-3042, cuando menos 48 horas antes de la junta. 
 
Persons who require special accommodations under the Americans with Disabilities Act or persons who require 
interpreter services (free of charge) should contact Debbie Parks at (417) 865-3042 at least 24 hours ahead of the 
meeting. 
 
If you need relay services please call the following numbers:  711 - Nationwide relay service; 1-800-735-2966 - 
Missouri TTY service; 1-800-735-0135 - Missouri voice carry-over service. 
 
OTO fully complies with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and related statutes and regulations in all programs 
and activities.  For more information or to obtain a Title VI Complaint Form, see www.ozarkstransportation.org or 
call (417) 865-3042. 

 



MEETING MINUTES 
 
Attached for Board of Directors member review are the minutes from the December 15, 2011 
Board of Directors Meeting.  Please review these minutes prior to the meeting and note any 
changes that need to be made.  The Chair will ask during the meeting if any Board of 
Directors member has any amendments to the attached minutes. 
 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS ACTION REQUESTED:  
 
To make any necessary corrections to the minutes and then approve the minutes for public 
review. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

1 Board of Directors Meeting Minutes December 15, 2011  
 

OZARKS TRANSPORTATION ORGANIZATION 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING MINUTES 

December 15, 2011 
 
The Board of Directors of the Ozarks Transportation Organization met at its scheduled time of 
12:00 p.m. in the Ozarks Transportation Organization Large Conference Room, in Springfield, 
Missouri. 
 
The following members were present: 
 
Ms. Becky Baltz, MoDOT Ms. Teri Hacker, Citizen-at-Large 
Mr. Harold Bengsch, Greene County Mr. Jim Krischke, City of Republic (a) 
Mr. Phil Broyles, City of Springfield (a) Mr. Aaron Kruse, City of Battlefield    
Mr. Steve Childers, City of Ozark (a) Mr. Lou Lapaglia, Christian County (Chair) 
Mr. Jerry Compton, City of Springfield Ms. Lisa Officer, City Utilities 
Mr. J. Howard Fisk, Citizen-at-Large Mr. Brian Weiler, Airport Board (a)  
   

(a) Denotes alternate given voting privileges as a substitute for voting member not present 
 

The following members were not present: 
 
Mr. Mokhtee Ahmad, FTA Mr. Bradley McMahon, FHWA 
Ms. Roseann Bentley, Greene County (a) Mr. Steve Meyer, City of Springfield (a) 
Mr. Thomas Bieker, City of Springfield (a) Mr. Shane Nelson, City of Ozark 
Mr. Shawn Billings, City of Battlefield (a)  Mr. Jim O’Neal, City of Springfield 
Mr. Brian Bingle, City of Nixa (a) Mr. Tom Rankin, City Utilities (a) 
Mr. Brian Buckner, City of Republic Mr. John Rush, City of Springfield 
Mr. Sam Clifton, City of Nixa Mr. Dan Salisbury, MoDOT (a) 
Mr. John Elkins, Citizen-at-Large (a)  Mr. Mark Schenkelberg, FAA 
Mr. Jim Enyart, Airport Board Mr. Tim Smith, Greene County (a) 
Mr. Tom Finnie, Citizen-at-Large Mr. John Vicat, City of Strafford 
Mr. Nick Heatherly, City of Willard (a)  Mr. Tom Vicat, City of Strafford (a) 
Mr. Tom Keltner, City of Willard Mr. Jim Viebrock, Greene County 
  
Others Present:  Mr. Jered Tyler, Congressman Billy Long’s Office; Ms. Sara Edwards, Ms. 
Natasha Longpine, Mr. Curtis Owens, Ms. Debbie Parks, Ozarks Transportation Organization; 
Mr. Ralph Rognstad Jr., City of Springfield Planning & Development; Mr. Carl Carlson, Olsson 
Associates;  Mr. David Rauch, Senator Claire McCaskill’s Office;  Mr. Dan Smith, Greene 
County Highway Department; Ms. Joy Robertson, KOLR 10 News;  Mr. Wes Johnson, 
Springfield News-leader;  Mr. Dan Wadlington, Senator Roy Blunt’s Office; Mr. Doug Colvin, 
City of Nixa; Mr. Mike Landis, KY3; Mr. Joe Pestka, Missouri Department of Transportation 
 

 
Mr. Lapaglia called the meeting to order at 12:00 p.m. 
 
 
 



 

2 DRAFT Board of Directors Meeting Minutes – December 15, 2011 
 

I. 
 

Administration 

A. Introductions 
 

B. Approval of Board of Directors Meeting Agenda 
 

Mr. Broyles made the motion to approve the Board of Directors Meeting Agenda.  Mr. Fisk 
seconded and the agenda was approved unanimously.   
 

C. Approval of the October 20, 2011 Meeting Minutes 
 
Mr. Childers made the motion to approve the Board of Directors October 20, 2011 Meeting 
Minutes.  Mr. Broyles seconded and the motion was approved unanimously.   
 

D. Public Comment Period 
None 
 

E. Executive Director’s Report 
Ms. Edwards thanked the Directors for attending and welcomed everyone to the new OTO 
offices, inviting attendees to take a look around after the meeting.  She mentioned that staff 
became knowledgeable with all things relating to the move, including data cabling, furniture 
assembly and phones.  The move was within budget and it looks as if OTO should not be 
over budget for the year.  
 
Staff is working on the Transit Coordination Plan, working with human service organizations 
and transit providers in the region.  Ms. Edwards is working with MoDOT, updating the 
Local Public Agency Manual.  The deadline for this update is March, so by summer, there 
should be a new user-friendly and easy to understand manual available. 
 
The Transit Study is also underway.  Phase I, which was a survey of the existing conditions, 
has been completed in draft form, but will have additional staff review.  Phase II has not yet 
been received, but should be available in a few weeks.  There is a planned presentation of the 
draft reports for the City Utilities Board and the Transit Study Steering Committee on 
January 19.  Phase III, which is the regional aspect of the Plan, is still underway. 
 
Staff attended the annual meeting of the Association of Metropolitan Planning Organizations 
in Dallas.  Ms. Edwards is serving on the Missouri Public Transit Association Board.  Staff is 
also serving on the Missouri Coalition for Roadway Safety, looking at ways to best reduce 
fatalities.  Aerial photography flights are moving forward and are scheduled for February.  
Staff is working with the Ozarks Clean Air Alliance to update the Clean Air Action Plan. 
 
Ms. Edwards concluded by thanking Lisa Officer for her service to the OTO, especially as 
Treasurer over the past three years.  Ms. Edwards also thanked Lou Lapaglia for his service 
as Chairman over the past year. 

 
 

F. Legislative Reports 
Mr. David Rauch provided an update on legislative activities.  He stated that the Federal 
Highway Trust Fund had been extended to March 31.  The House and Senate will need to 
either reach an agreement on a new extension or a completely new reauthorization.  The 
Senate is currently working on a two-year extension with current funding levels, plus a cost 



 

3 DRAFT Board of Directors Meeting Minutes – December 15, 2011 
 

of living adjustment.  The challenge, though, is that the trust fund is not keeping up as far as 
revenue is concerned and funding will need to be found in addition to the gas tax for these 
next two years.   
 
Senators McCaskill and Collins have submitted a bi-partisan resolution for the federal payroll 
tax issue, which recommends a one-time $10 billion appropriation to states to help leverage 
private funding.  The bill would also provide an additional $25 billion for the transportation 
trust fund.  This infrastructure component is not meant to be dependent on the payroll tax 
legislation, and could move forward independently. 
 
Mr. Dan Wadlington also provided an update on federal legislative activities.  Movement on 
the transportation bill for the next year is unknown.  There are a variety of issues which need 
addressing and don’t seem to be gaining any traction.  Regardless of the payroll tax bill, 
Senator Blunt is hopeful that there can be an extension of the highway bill, which will also 
address airports.  At this point, it is important to keep the government operating, and perhaps 
work with a short extension. 
 

II. 
 

New Business 

A. MoDOT Airport Funding Discussion 
Mr. Joe Pestka made a presentation on airports in Missouri and how they are funded.  
Regarding the importance of airports, Mr. Pestka referenced a 2010 CNBC study which cited 
what businesses look for when moving or expanding in an area.  Highway accessibility 
topped the list, but accessibility to a major airport was also mentioned by 50 percent of 
businesses.  MoDOT has conducted a similar survey and found similar results; that highway 
accessibility and labor costs are important, as well as  a commercial service airport and a 
general aviation airport.  The CNBC study also compared transportation across all fifty states.  
Missouri did very well, ranking in the top ten, but also with room for improvement.  Factors 
considered included the value of goods transported within the state, as well as the quality of 
the road network and air travel availability. 
 
There are a number of ways to measure airport activity.  Since 1960, the overall number of 
passenger enplanements for the United States has grown from 50 million to 700 million.  This 
represents a 5 percent annual growth in the system.  FAA predictions show potential 
enplanements reaching over a billion by 2025.  This review of activity goes into an FAA 
report called the National Integrated Plan of Airport Systems.  This inventories the 
infrastructure needs of airports across the country.  A five-year period of this Plan identifies 
needs totaling $50 billion.  These are mostly addressed through the Airport Improvement 
Program, which is the airport equivalent of the highway reauthorization bill.  At this point the 
AIP is on its 22nd

 

 plus continuing resolution.  The funding level has been about $3.5 billion 
per year compared to the $10 billion per year in identified needs. 

MoDOT works with about 75 airports across the state.  MoDOT works with all types of 
airports, from commercial and general aviation service here in Springfield to the turf runways 
of Osceola.  Mr. Steve Childers asked  how many airports had turf runways and if they were 
all publically funded.  Mr. Pestka stated that there are not many, and yes, they do receive 
federal funding in some form, while those that don’t, receive safety assistance. 
 
Of the $3.5 billion authorized federally, Missouri receives about $70 million.  This is divided 
among several programs, including passenger entitlement, state apportionment, non-primary 
entitlement, and non-discretionary.  Some funding goes directly to the airports and other has 



 

4 DRAFT Board of Directors Meeting Minutes – December 15, 2011 
 

more flexibility.  Missouri did benefit from about an addition $30 million from ARRA 
projects, putting the 2009 total at about $100 million for the state. 
 
Additional funding comes from the State Aviation Trust Fund.  This is funded through a 
4.225 percent tax on jet fuel.  Three percent of the 4.335 percent can be used toward 
maintenance and capital improvement projects at airports.  In total, this provides about $5 to 
$6 million per year and is about 10 percent of the overall state program.  This is significant 
for the general aviation airports. 
 
MoDOT works more with the general aviation airports in regards to distribution of funding.  
The larger commercial airports, like the Springfield-Branson National Airport, work directly 
with FAA.  Projects in Missouri are awarded federal funding based on a prioritization and 
formula system, where different types of projects receive a particular score and the highest 
score receives the funding.  Generally, runways receive the highest scores, then the taxiway, 
then the apron, with the terminal and auto parking less so.  In other words, the further a 
project is away from the runway, the less priority it receives.  Additional Missouri projects 
receive funding with a geographic distribution in mind, as well as value. 
 
Mr. Childers asked if there is a distance from an airport when it is no longer a selling point 
for the region.  Mr. Pestka stated that he was not sure what that would be, that the Missouri 
Partnership works with businesses and MoDOT’s role is to provide details on the particular 
airports. 
 
Mr. Lapaglia directed the Board Members to the reason for the discussion on airport funding.  
At the prior Board meeting, there was discussion regarding federal funding of the Branson 
Airport and other future airports.  It was suggested that the OTO Board of Directors take a 
position opposing the use of federal funds for additional airports in the region.  The agenda 
includes three potential motions for the Board to consider: 
 
1) Move to add the following recommendation to the OTO Long Range Transportation 

Plan, Journey 2035 –  
• The OTO opposes the use of federal funds for airports in the OTO region that do 

not already receive federal funds. 
2) Move to add a recommendation to the OTO Long Range Transportation Plan, Journey 

2035, that addresses the following regarding federal funding of airports in the OTO 
region… 

• ________________________________ 
3) Move not to add a recommendation to the OTO Long Range Trasnportation Plan, 

Journey 2035, at this time, instead requesting that staff monitor the issue, keeping the 
Board informed of future developments regarding the use of federal funding at airports 
within the region. 

 
Ms. Officer stated that she did not feel comfortable eliminating another airport’s eligibility 
for funding and her inclination would be for Motion #3.  Mr. Brian Weiler stated that he 
shared her feelings.  He felt competition wasn’t necessarily bad and that the airport does well 
in the competitive process.  The Springfield-Branson National Airport is currently in the 
process of disposing of the old Ozark Airport property, the funds from which, will be 
reinvested in the general aviation facility in Springfield. 
 
Mr. Fisk stated that he respects these two opinions while also wanting to preserve the $100 
million that has been invested in the Springfield-Branson National Airport.  He stated that a 



 

5 DRAFT Board of Directors Meeting Minutes – December 15, 2011 
 

new airport asking for federal funds would take from the other airports around the state.  He 
recommended Motion #1, opposing federal funds for other airports in the OTO region that do 
not currently receive federal funds. 
 
Mr. Weiler asked Mr. Pestka to clarify who is eligible to receive what funds.  Mr. Pestka 
stated that there are significant hurdles to get into these funding programs.  They require 
grant assurances, which are exclusive rights, meaning that each tenant must be treated 
equally.  To access this funding, a political subdivision must sponsor the airport. 
 
Mr. Childers state that this is not an easy issue.  He points out that there are two ways to look 
at it – funding infrastructure and marketing the region.  Mr. Harold Bengsch stated that he 
also sees both sides of the issue.  He added that choosing Motion #3 would not preclude the 
region from taking an opposition stance in the future.  Mr. Fisk stated that he agreed, but also 
tried to look at the issue from the perspective of a citizen. 
 
Mr. Compton asked for clarification regarding the purpose of Springfield serving as a feeder 
for the Dallas hub, and the impact Northwest Arkansas has.  Mr. Weiler responded that 
Dallas is one of Springfield’s primary hubs, and there are five in total.  Tulsa is actually cited 
as Springfield’s greatest leakage area for flights.  Even with the economy and American 
Airlines filing for bankruptcy, Mr. Weiler mentioned that the region has done well, 
maintaining ten direct destinations and five hub connections.  He has meetings with United 
and American regarding Springfield.  Even with that, the Airport is down about 22 percent of 
the number of available seats.  This is something seen across the industry.  Airlines cannot 
afford to fly empty, so there are fewer, although fuller flights offered.  Mr. Fisk added that the 
airlines continue to fly out of Springfield because it still makes sense for them, even if rates 
are higher here than out of other locations.  Mr. Weiler responded that though the high-fare 
perception is out there, users need to shop around and be flexible.  Springfield is not always 
the high price, and the earlier a flight is booked, the better chance there is for a good deal.  
The Branson airport may even be helping by creating competition and offering alternatives. 
 
Ms. Officer made the motion to not add a recommendation to the OTO Long Range 
Transportation Plan, Journey 2035, at this time, instead requesting that staff monitor the 
issue, keeping the Board informed of future developments regarding the use of federal 
funding at airports within the region.  Mr. Fisk seconded and the motion passed unanimously. 
 

B. Final Draft OTO Long Range Transportation Plan (LRTP)  
Ms. Longpine provided an overview of the final Long Range Transportation Plan, Journey 
2035, to the Board of Directors.  The presentation is attached to these minutes.  Mr. Childers 
asked what happens to the unconstrained list in the Plan.  Ms. Longpine responded that the 
Plan outlines that if additional funding becomes available, the unconstrained project list 
would be the source for projects to use that additional funding.  It will also be considered 
when the Plan is updated in five years, so everyone remembers the projects which were 
important in 2012. 
 
Mr. Phil Broyles moved to adopt Journey 2035.  Ms. Officer seconded and the motion carried 
unanimously. 
 

C. Amendment Number One to FY2012-2015 Transportation Improvement Program  

Ms. Edwards described the proposed changes to the FY2012 to 2015 Transportation 
Improvement Program.  All three projects appeared in the FY 211-2014 TIP.  Two of the 



 

6 DRAFT Board of Directors Meeting Minutes – December 15, 2011 
 

projects are located on South Campbell, one a streetscape improvement from Mount Vernon 
and the other from Walnut to McDaniel.  The third project is also streetscaping, but on 
Boonville, between Chestnut and Tampa.  These three projects were awarded to the City of 
Springfield in 2008.  The City had intended to obligate the projects by September 30, 2011, 
but was unable to, creating the need to put them in the current TIP.  These projects just need 
to be added to the TIP and will require no additional funds as those were identified with the 
original projects in 2008. 
 
Mr. Broyles motioned to approve TIP Amendment Number One to the FY 2012-2015 
Transportation Improvement Program.  Mr. Bengsch seconded and the motion carried 
unanimously. 
 

D. Annual Listing of Obligated Projects 
Ms. Edwards explained that OTO is required by law to publish a list of all federally funded 
projects within the OTO region.  The list provided in the agenda packet shows the federal 
funds spent on projects within the OTO area.  Staff is asking that the Board approve the list of 
obligated projects in order to meet the federal requirement. 
 
Mr. Fisk motioned to approve the annual listing of obligated projects and Mr. Weiler 
seconded.  The motion passed unanimously. 
 

E. Nominating Committee Report 
Mr. Bengsch presented the following persons for the following offices: 
 
Chair – Jerry Compton, City of Springfield 
Vice-Chair – Jim Viebrock, Greene County 
Secretary – Howard Fisk, Citizen-at-Large 
Treasurer – Jim Krischke, City of Republic 
 
Mr. Bengsch stated that each person had agreed to serve.  Ms. Officer motioned to appoint 
the aforementioned persons to the aforementioned offices.  Mr. Broyles seconded and the 
motion passed unanimously. 
 

F. Welcome to New Chair and Vice-Chair 
Mr. Lapaglia thanked the Board for the privilege of serving as the 2011 Chairman and 
welcomed Mr. Compton as the new Chairman and Mr. Viebrock as Vice-Chairman for 2012.   

G. OTO Board of Directors 2012 Meeting Schedule 
Mr. Lapaglia reminded the Board that the next meeting would be February 16, 2012. 
 
 

III. 

A. Board of Directors Member Announcements 

Other Business 
 

Mr. Broyles informed the Board of a new requirement that each agency accepting federal 
funds needs to employ a certified person.  The first opportunity to become certified will be at 
a MoDOT-sponsored TEAM (Transportation Engineers Association of Missouri) Conference 
in Branson.  Ms. Edwards added that this will also meet the LPA manual requirement to have 
a person of responsible charge. 
 



 

7 DRAFT Board of Directors Meeting Minutes – December 15, 2011 
 

Mr. Bengsch asked for the definition of a responsible person.  Mr. Broyles responded that it 
could be any designated person from the city clerk to a city engineer.  The main point is that 
each entity who receives federal funds must have someone who is trained and certified, who 
can ensure all of the rules tied to receiving federal funds are being followed.  Once a person 
attends the day-long training session they will be considered certified. 
 
Mr. Fisk asked if it would be appropriate for OTO staff to participate.  Ms. Edwards 
answered that she would check if this person needed to be a registered engineer, but either 
way would have a member of the OTO staff participate in the training workshop. 

 
B. Transportation Issues For Board of Directors Member Review  

Mr. Childers referenced a request for members on a statewide MoDOT Local Public Agency 
Advisory Team.  He thought Ms. Edwards would be appropriate representation for the region 
and that would be better than having each jurisdiction submitting an application.  Ms. 
Edwards explained that MoDOT is forming a statewide advisory committee to review the 
local public agency process.  The advisory team will consist of people with varying levels of 
expertise and geographic areas.  
 
Ms. Becky Baltz added that the planning process has even changed at the MoDOT District 
level.  Mr. Miller will be involved from the planning side, but construction expertise has been 
added on the design side to provide guidance to local agencies.   
 

C. Articles for Board of Directors Member Information 
Mr. Lapaglia directed the Board members to the articles attached at the end of the agenda. 
 

D. Closed Session

 

 - Pursuant to RSMo 610.021(13), closed meetings are permitted for 
individually identifiable personnel records, performance ratings or records pertaining to 
employees or applicants for employment. 

1. Vote to Close Session 
Mr. Jim Krischke made a motion to go into closed session to discuss personnel matters 
pursuant to RSMo 610.021(3) and was seconded by Mr. Childers.  The motion carried 
unanimously. 

 
2. Discussion of Executive Director’s Annual Performance Evaluation 

The Board of Directors discussed the recommendation from the Executive Committee 
regarding the Executive Director’s Performance Evaluation, including a 3 percent raise 
and that future performance evaluations for the Executive Director position should be 
based on meeting benchmarked criteria.   
 
Mr. Fisk motioned to approve this process and submit to the Executive Committee the 
development of performance objectives for the Executive Director, as well as the 
finalization of the Executive Director performance review.  Mr. Jim Krischke seconded.  
The motion carried. 

 
IV. 

Mr. Broyles motioned to adjourn the Boa rd meeting.  Mr. Krischke seconded and the motion passed 
unanimously.  The meeting adjourned at 1:08 p.m. 

Adjournment 
 



2/7/2012

1

Plan for next 24 years

Based on projections of growth and travel demand, as 
well as financial assumptions

OTO will grow over 50% by 2035 almost 470 000OTO will grow over 50% by 2035, almost 470,000 
people

0

100,000

200,000

300,000

400,000

500,000

2000 2010 2035

Multi‐modal approach, can’t build out of 
congestion

Methodology to monitor performance

Financial Constraints
$1.7 billion in needs, can only afford $605,000,000

Total Revenue through 2035 $605,641,614

Constrained Project List $599,713,898

Unconstrained Project List $1,107,096,392

Website

Survey

Public Input Meetings

Subcommittee Meetings

Public Hearings

Economic Development

Multi‐modal Interconnected System

Quality of Life

Operations and Maintenance

Safety and Security

Transportation Advocacy

Needs Assessment

Performance Measures

Major Thoroughfare Plan

Public Transit

I t Cit S f

Aviation

Goods Movement

Environmental 
ConsiderationsInter‐City Surface 

Transportation

Bicycle and Pedestrian

Considerations

Financial Capacity

Project Selection



2/7/2012

2

Added Plan Summary

Comments from Public Meetings

MSU Transit Ridership Numbers

Additional Photos in Bike/Ped Chapter

Project Numbers on Constrained Project List

Visualizations



BOARD OF DIRECTORS AGENDA 02/16/12; ITEM II.A. 
 

OTO In-Kind Match Letters 
 

Ozarks Transportation Organization 
(Metropolitan Planning Organization) 

 
AGENDA DESCRIPTION:   
 
OTO is required to provide a 20 percent local match to all federal funding, however, in-
kind time at OTO meetings can be used as match in lieu of a portion of local jurisdiction 
dues. This allows the OTO to build a reserve of match funds for operating expenses. In 
order to report in-kind match, OTO must have a letter from each jurisdiction 
documenting the billable rate.  
 
Included in the agenda packet are two forms: Volunteer In-Kind Letter and Paid Position 
In-Kind Letter.  If a Board of Directors member is an elected official or volunteer who 
sits on the OTO Board, the Volunteer In-Kind Letter would be filled out.  If a Board of 
Directors member is an employee of the jurisdiction he represents and comes in the 
capacity of his job, then the Paid Position In-Kind Letter should be filled out.   
 
 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS ACTION REQUESTED:  
 
No official motion is needed, however, OTO is requesting that the In-Kind letters be 
completed and returned no later than February 29, 2012. 

 



(417) 865-3042 / FAX (417) 862-6013 
www.OzarksTransportation.org 

  
 

 
Ozarks Transportation Organization 

205 Park Central East, Suite 205, Springfield, Missouri 65806 
 
 
 

 
 
January 6, 2012 
 
 
Dear OTO Jurisdiction Member: 
 
Ozarks Transportation Organization (OTO) currently is funded by a Federal Consolidated 
Planning Grant and matches the grant with local membership dues.   In addition the OTO will 
utilize in-kind match as a source of match funding for the federal grant. 
 
The proposed in-kind match will charge the time OTO Board and Committee Members spend in 
monthly OTO meetings conducting transportation planning for the region.  OTO will use the 
volunteer rate for all citizens-at-large positions and volunteer positions.  Please return the 
following information for your jurisdiction’s members that are appointed to the OTO. 
 
Member Jurisdiction:         
 
Member Name:         
 
Volunteer Hourly Rate 2009: $ 18.57    
 
 
          
Signature 
 
This information will only be used by OTO, MoDOT, and FHWA for budget and audit purposes. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Debbie Parks 
Office Coordinator 
 

 
 
 



(417) 865-3042 / FAX (417) 862-6013 
www.OzarksTransportation.org 

  
 

 
Ozarks Transportation Organization 

205 Park Central East, Suite 205, Springfield, Missouri 65806 
 

January 6, 2012 
 

 
 

Dear OTO Jurisdiction Member: 
 
Ozarks Transportation Organization (OTO) currently is funded by a Federal Consolidated 
Planning Grant and matches the grant with local membership dues.  In addition the OTO utilizes 
in-kind match as a source of match funds for the federal grant.   
 
The proposed in-kind match will charge the time OTO Board and Committee members spend in 
monthly OTO meetings conducting transportation planning for the region.  OTO will use the 
volunteer rate for all citizens-at-large positions and will not utilize any member positions that are 
funded with federal funds.  In order to complete the request for in-kind match, OTO will need to 
know the hourly rate of the Board and Committee members who work in paid positions.   
 
Please return the following salary information for your jurisdiction’s members that are appointed 
to the OTO. 
 
Member Jurisdiction:         
 
Member Name:         
 
Hourly Rate without benefits   $    Hourly Rate with benefits $   
  
 
I certify this is my hourly rate with and without benefits for FY 2012. 
 
 
         
Signature 
 
 
This information will be used by OTO, MoDOT, and FHWA for budget and audit 
purposes. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Debbie Parks 



BOARD OF DIRECTORS AGENDA 02/16/12; ITEM II.B. 
 

OTO Board Appointment Letters 
 

Ozarks Transportation Organization 
(Metropolitan Planning Organization) 

 
AGENDA DESCRIPTION:   
 
OTO staff is requesting that each jurisdiction assist in updating records of official 
representation on the Board of Directors. The following is an excerpt from the OTO 
bylaws outlining the membership requirements.  
 
 
Section 6.1:  Membership 

 
A. Board of Directors  – Voting Members (provided entities listed below have joined 
the organization and are current in dues): 
 

1. Two (2) Greene County Commissioner(s) 
2. Three (3) Springfield City Council Member(s) 
3. One (1) City Utilities Board Member 
4. One (1) Springfield-Branson Regional Airport Board Member 
5. Three (3) Citizen At-Large Representatives 

• One (1) Member Nominated by the Board of Directors and Appointed 
by the MPO 

• Two (2) Members Nominated by Springfield and Appointed by the 
MPO 

  6. One (1) Elected Official from the City of Republic 
7. One (1) Elected Official from the City of Ozark 
8. One (1) Elected Official from Christian County 
9. One (1) Elected Official from the City of Nixa 
10. One (1) Elected Official from the City of Willard 
11. One (1) Elected Official from the City of Strafford 
12. One (1) Elected Official from the City of Battlefield 

 
B. Board of Directors – Non-Voting Members 
 

1. Federal Highway Administration Representative 
2. Federal Transit Administration Representative 
3. Federal Aviation Administration Representative 
4. District Engineer, Missouri Department of Transportation (MoDot) 

 
C. The voting members of the Board of Directors shall serve terms on the Board 

coinciding with the terms of their respective offices, as determined by the specific 
local jurisdiction(s).  The Citizen-at-Large Representatives shall serve a term of 



three (3) years, except for the inaugural year.  The first years’ Citizen-at-Large 
terms shall be the following: 

 
• The member nominated by the Board of Directors and appointed by the 

MPO shall serve a term of one year. 
• One member nominated by Springfield and appointed by the MPO shall 

serve a term of two years. 
• One member nominated by Springfield and appointed by the MPO shall 

serve a term of three years. 
 

The City of Springfield may determine which of their initial nominees will serve 
the two and three year positions. 
  

Each elected representative or board representative shall name one (1) elected or 
appointed official as an alternate, in writing, who may exercise full member powers 
during their absence.  Alternates for the Citizen-at-Large Representatives shall be 
nominated and appointed through the same process as the primary representative.  
The Alternate’s term shall also correspond with the primary representative’s term.  
No individual, whether elected, appointed, or designated as an alternate, may serve 
on both the Board of Directors and Technical Committee. 

 
 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS ACTION REQUESTED:  
 
No official motion is needed, however, OTO is requesting appointment letters be returned 
no later than February 29, 2012. 

 



 

(417) 865-3042 / FAX (417) 862-6013 
www.OzarksTransportation.org 

  
 

 
Ozarks Transportation Organization 

205 Park Central East, Suite 205, Springfield, Missouri 65806 
 
 
 

 
 
January 6, 2012 
 
 
Ms. Sara Edwards 
Executive Director 
205 Park Central East, Suite 205 
Springfield, MO  65806 
 
Dear Ms. Edwards: 
 
This letter is to notify you that the City of Everywhere, Missouri has appointed an official voting 
member and alternate for the Ozarks Transportation Organization Technical Planning 
Committee.   
 
Voting Member:  Ms. Jane Doe 
 

Contact Information:  1234 South Street  
                                      Everywhere, MO  65606 
    417-888-8888 
 
Alternative Voting Member:  Mr. John Smith 
 

Contact Information:  1234 South Street 
                                     Everywhere, MO  65606 
    417-888-7777 
 
Please forward any information regarding the TPC to Ms. Jane Doe and Mr. John Smith.  If you 
have any questions regarding this letter please call the number listed below.  
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Tom Davis 
Mayor 

 
 



BOARD OF DIRECTORS AGENDA 02/16/12; ITEM II.C. 
 

Financial Statements for 2nd Quarter 2011-2012 Budget Year 
 

Ozarks Transportation Organization 
(Springfield, MO Area MPO) 

 
 

AGENDA DESCRIPTION:   

Included for consideration is the second quarter financial statements for the 2011-2012 Budget 
Year.  This period includes September 1, 2011 through December 31, 2011.  The Profit and Loss 
Statement, Balance Sheet, and OTO Quarterly Expenditures Statement (categorized to match the 
approved Unified Planning Work Program Budget) are included for Board Member review.  
During this period, expenditures exceeded revenues in the amount of $10,062.54.  Also included 
is the Operating Fund Balance Report which shows a healthy fund balance of $188,493.08. 
 
The OTO was able to utilize $2,577.51 of In-Kind Match Income during the second quarter.  
Staff would like to thank all member jurisdictions for helping with the in-kind match 
documentation. 
 
Eighty percent of Ozarks Transportation Organization’s funding is from the Consolidated 
Planning Grant administered through MoDOT, utilizing federal transportation dollars.  This is a 
reimbursable grant program.  OTO bills MoDOT 80 percent of the actual expenses.  Dues are 
collected from member jurisdictions to pay for the remaining 20 percent. 
 
 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS ACTION REQUESTED: 
 
That a member of the Board Directors makes one of the following motions:  
 
“Move to accept the 2nd Quarter Financial Statements for the 2011-2012 Budget Year” 
 
OR 
 
“Move to return to staff the 2nd Quarter Financial Statements for the 2011-2012 Budget Year in 
order to ________________” 
 
 
 
 



Oct - Dec 11

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income

Interest Income 223.63
Other Types of Income

City Utilites Match 13,497.70
Consolidated Planning Grant CPG 200,910.64
In-Kind Match, Donated Direct C 2,577.51

Total Other Types of Income 216,985.85

Program Income
Local Jurisdiction Match Funds 500.40

Total Program Income 500.40

Total Income 217,709.88

Expense
Board of Director Insurance 2,030.00
Business Expenses

Membership Dues 760.00

Total Business Expenses 760.00

Contract Services
Legal Fees 364.00
Payroll Company Fee 456.00
Travel Time Runs and Traffic 1,320.00

Total Contract Services 2,140.00

Facilities and Equipment
Building Rental 12,777.00
Copy Machine Lease 662.52

Total Facilities and Equipment 13,439.52

Fixed Route Transit Analysis 56,889.97
In-Kind Match Expense

Donated Ride Share Advertising 996.00
Member Attendance at Meetings 1,581.51

Total In-Kind Match Expense 2,577.51

Operations
Advertising 2,849.00
Audit 3,660.00
Computer Upgrades 1,263.53
Data Storage/Backup 539.55
Food Supplies 1,461.04
Infill Costs 2,336.50
Mileage 660.55
Moving Expenses 3,209.83
Office Equip Repair 102.84
Office Supplies/Furniture 33,462.54
Postage 1,043.11
Presentation System 4,919.00
Printing 10,761.06
Rideshare Software/Materials 2,383.18
Telephone 1,041.56

Total Operations 69,693.29

Other Types of Expenses
Insurance - Liability -605.00
Mobile Data Plans 270.00

Total Other Types of Expenses -335.00

Salaries
Payroll Tax Expense 4,554.78
SEP-IRA Contribution 6,326.14
Salaries - Other 64,185.17

Total Salaries 75,066.09

10:24 AM Ozarks Transportation Organization
01/30/12 Profit & Loss
Cash Basis October through December 2011

Page 1



Oct - Dec 11

Travel
Hotel 718.68
Meals 282.96
Registration 30.00
Transportation 1,112.80
Travel Miscellaneous 262.60

Total Travel 2,407.04

Travel Model Consultant 3,104.00

Total Expense 227,772.42

Net Ordinary Income -10,062.54

Net Income -10,062.54

10:24 AM Ozarks Transportation Organization
01/30/12 Profit & Loss
Cash Basis October through December 2011

Page 2



Dec 31, 11

ASSETS
Current Assets

Checking/Savings
Great Southern Bank 188,493.08

Total Checking/Savings 188,493.08

Total Current Assets 188,493.08

TOTAL ASSETS 188,493.08

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities

Current Liabilities
Credit Cards

US Bank Purchasing Card 3,092.61

Total Credit Cards 3,092.61

Other Current Liabilities
Dependent FSA - Employee 002 9.22
Dependent FSA - Employee 003 39.91
Health FSA - Employee 003 -39.97
Health FSA - Employee 008 288.47

Total Other Current Liabilities 297.63

Total Current Liabilities 3,390.24

Total Liabilities 3,390.24

Equity
Unrestricted Net Assets 149,327.92
Net Income 35,774.92

Total Equity 185,102.84

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 188,493.08

10:22 AM Ozarks Transportation Organization
01/30/12 Balance Sheet
Cash Basis As of December 31, 2011

Page 1



Jul - Dec 11 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income

Interest Income 546.54
Other Types of Income

City Utilites Match 13,497.70 14,000.00 -502.30 96.4%
Consolidated Planning Grant CPG 291,376.74 645,011.90 -353,635.16 45.2%
In-Kind Match, Donated Direct C 5,402.53 28,977.00 -23,574.47 18.6%

Total Other Types of Income 310,276.97 687,988.90 -377,711.93 45.1%

Program Income
Local Jurisdiction Match Funds 85,803.88 118,275.97 -32,472.09 72.5%

Total Program Income 85,803.88 118,275.97 -32,472.09 72.5%

Total Income 396,627.39 806,264.87 -409,637.48 49.2%

Expense
Board of Director Insurance 2,030.00 2,200.00 -170.00 92.3%
Business Expenses

Membership Dues 1,144.00 4,200.00 -3,056.00 27.2%

Total Business Expenses 1,144.00 4,200.00 -3,056.00 27.2%

Contract Services
Accounting Services 0.00 6,000.00 -6,000.00 0.0%
Legal Fees 1,724.00 4,000.00 -2,276.00 43.1%
Payroll Company Fee 1,029.20 2,500.00 -1,470.80 41.2%
Travel Model Consultant 0.00 10,000.00 -10,000.00 0.0%
Travel Time Runs and Traffic 1,320.00 20,000.00 -18,680.00 6.6%

Total Contract Services 4,073.20 42,500.00 -38,426.80 9.6%

Facilities and Equipment
Building Rental 26,777.00 43,588.00 -16,811.00 61.4%
Copy Machine Lease 1,486.54 3,750.00 -2,263.46 39.6%

Total Facilities and Equipment 28,263.54 47,338.00 -19,074.46 59.7%

Fixed Route Transit Analysis 56,889.97 140,000.00 -83,110.03 40.6%
In-Kind Match Expense

Direct Cost - MoDOT Salaries 0.00 15,977.00 -15,977.00 0.0%
Donated Ride Share Advertising 1,992.00 5,000.00 -3,008.00 39.8%
Member Attendance at Meetings 3,410.53 8,000.00 -4,589.47 42.6%

Total In-Kind Match Expense 5,402.53 28,977.00 -23,574.47 18.6%

Operations
Advertising 3,326.61 5,380.00 -2,053.39 61.8%
Audit 3,660.00 4,750.00 -1,090.00 77.1%
Computer Software 200.00 2,000.00 -1,800.00 10.0%
Computer Upgrades 1,263.53 4,000.00 -2,736.47 31.6%
Data Storage/Backup 1,290.30 2,000.00 -709.70 64.5%
Food Supplies 1,844.95 4,000.00 -2,155.05 46.1%
GIS Maintenance 0.00 6,000.00 -6,000.00 0.0%
Infill Costs 2,336.50 2,000.00 336.50 116.8%
IT Maintenance Contract 9,480.00 10,000.00 -520.00 94.8%
Mileage 1,228.85 2,000.00 -771.15 61.4%
Moving Expenses 3,209.83 3,400.00 -190.17 94.4%
Office Equip Repair 102.84 500.00 -397.16 20.6%
Office Supplies/Furniture 34,813.10 37,236.00 -2,422.90 93.5%
Parking 0.00 500.00 -500.00 0.0%
Postage 1,958.05 4,000.00 -2,041.95 49.0%
Presentation System 4,919.00 5,000.00 -81.00 98.4%
Printing 10,840.96 21,000.00 -10,159.04 51.6%
Publications 110.90 1,000.00 -889.10 11.1%
Rideshare Software/Materials 3,833.18 20,000.00 -16,166.82 19.2%
Telephone 1,948.19 5,000.00 -3,051.81 39.0%
TIP Software 0.00 25,000.00 -25,000.00 0.0%
Training 1,262.90 5,800.00 -4,537.10 21.8%
Web Hosting 479.99 550.00 -70.01 87.3%

Total Operations 88,109.68 171,116.00 -83,006.32 51.5%

Other Types of Expenses
Insurance - Liability 309.00 1,400.00 -1,091.00 22.1%
Mobile Data Plans 810.00 1,620.00 -810.00 50.0%
Workmen's Compensation Ins 423.00 1,400.00 -977.00 30.2%

Total Other Types of Expenses 1,542.00 4,420.00 -2,878.00 34.9%

10:18 AM Ozarks Transportation Organization
01/30/12 Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual
Cash Basis July through December 2011

Page 1



Jul - Dec 11 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

Salaries
Payroll Tax Expense 10,783.97
SEP-IRA Contribution 13,659.15
Salaries - Other 135,986.89 351,012.87 -215,025.98 38.7%

Total Salaries 160,430.01 351,012.87 -190,582.86 45.7%

Travel
Hotel 3,533.34
Meals 665.28
Phone 210.80
Registration 1,790.00
Transportation 1,537.52
Travel Miscellaneous 470.60
Travel - Other 0.00 14,501.00 -14,501.00 0.0%

Total Travel 8,207.54 14,501.00 -6,293.46 56.6%

Travel Model Consultant 4,760.00

Total Expense 360,852.47 806,264.87 -445,412.40 44.8%

Net Ordinary Income 35,774.92 0.00 35,774.92 100.0%

Net Income 35,774.92 0.00 35,774.92 100.0%

10:18 AM Ozarks Transportation Organization
01/30/12 Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual
Cash Basis July through December 2011

Page 2














































































































































































































































